
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 1 of 28 

PRESENT: Parella, Herreshoff, Calouro, Stuart, and Sweeney 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Antonio A. Teixeira, Town Administrator 
   Michael A. Ursillo, Esq., Town Solicitor 
   A. Archie Martins, Town Sergeant 
 
The Council met in regular session on Wednesday evening, 
March 6, 2013 in the Town Hall, Council Chambers, beginning 
at 7:04 o'clock PM, Council Chairman Parella presiding: 
 
Prior to the commencement of this evening’s regular agenda, 
Council Chairman Parella announced that the annual St. 
Patrick’s Day parade in Newport would be held on March 16 
and that the Council and Administrator have been invited to 
participate. 
 
Council Chairman Parella also announced the Earth Hour 
effort by the World Wildlife Fund which will take place on 
March 23, 2013 at 8:30 o'clock PM.  Citizens are asked to 
turn off their lights at that time. 
 
She suggested that the Town might also observe this event. 
 
MOTION RE: CONSENT AGENDA - TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Calouro/Sweeney – Voted unanimously 
to approve the Consent Agenda as 
prepared and presented. 

 
A.   SUBMISSION OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S) 
 

1. Town Council Special Meeting - October 17, 
2012 

 
Calouro/Sweeney – Voted unanimously 
to approve these minutes as 
prepared and presented. 

 
2. Tri-town Council Meeting - December 19, 2012 
 

Calouro/Sweeney – Voted unanimously 
to approve these minutes as 
prepared and presented. 

 
3. Town Council Meeting - February 13, 2013 
 

Calouro/Sweeney – Voted unanimously 
to approve these minutes as 
prepared and presented. 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 2 of 28 

4. Town Council Special Meeting - February 20, 
2013 (action items only) 

 
Calouro/Sweeney – Voted unanimously 
to approve these minutes as 
prepared and presented. 

 
B.   PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
C. ORDINANCES 
 

1. Ordinance #2013-04, Chapter 16, Motor 
Vehicles and Traffic, Article V, Stopping, 
Standing and Parking, Section 16-146, Parking 
time limited in designated places (Old Ferry 
Road), 2nd reading for adoption 

 
Calouro/Stuart – Voted unanimously 
to consider this action to 
constitute the second reading for 
adoption of Ordinance #2013-04. 
Advertise in local newspaper. 
 

Prior to the vote taken, Councilman Herreshoff stated that 
the ordinance appears to be complicated but noted that it 
was recommended by the various stakeholders including the 
neighbors and State agencies. 
 
Council Chairman Parella noted that the Police Department 
intends to keep the Council advised concerning the 
implementation of the new parking plan. 

 
2. Ordinance #2013-05, Chapter 8, Boats, Docks 

and Waterways, Article III, Harbor Commission 
Advisory Committee, Section 8-92, Membership 
(increase maximum number of members from 6 to 
7), 1st reading 

 
Sweeney/Calouro – Voted unanimously 
to consider this action to 
constitute the first reading of 
Ordinance #2013-05.  Advertise in 
local newspaper. 

 
3. Ordinance #2013-06, Chapter 18, Parks and 

Recreation, Article I, In General, Sections 
18-2, Definitions and 18-7, Prohibited acts 
constituting violations (snowmobiles), 1st 
reading  



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 3 of 28 

 
Stuart/Sweeney – Voted unanimously 
to consider this action to 
constitute the first reading of 
Ordinance #2013-06.  Advertise in 
local newspaper.  
 

Prior to the vote taken, Councilman Stuart asked for a 
clarification of the origin of this action. 
 
Town Administrator Teixeira noted that the request came from 
Recreation Director Burke since there has been damage to the 
turf areas of Town parks due to the use of snowmobiles. 
 
Town Solicitor Ursillo noted that he was aware that the 
athletic fields suffered severe damage recently. 
 
A discussion ensued concerning how the regulations will be 
made known with Town Administrator Teixeira explaining that 
there may be a need to install snow fences and signage. 
 
Councilman Stuart asked to know if the fines for non-
compliance are established with Town Solicitor Ursillo 
responding that he will make a determination regarding fine 
provisions prior to the second reading of the ordinance. 

 
D. LICENSING BOARD - NEW PETITIONS 
 

1. Sebastian Wordell, for Wood St. Café, 260½ 
Wood Street - Request for One-Day Sunday 
Dancing and Entertainment License, March 24, 
2013 

 
a. Recommendation - Town Administrator and 

Chief of Police 
 

Herreshoff/Stuart – Voted 
unanimously to grant this license 
based upon the recommendations 
received and subject to conformance 
to all laws and ordinances and 
payment of all applicable fees, 
taxes, and levies. 
 
Herreshoff/Sweeney – Voted 
unanimously to waive the license 
fee in consideration of the 
charitable nature of the planned 
event. 

 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 4 of 28 

2. Richard Corrente, for Aidan’s Pub, 5 John 
Street - Request for One-Day Sunday Dancing 
and Entertainment License, March 17, 2013 

 
a. Recommendation - Town Administrator and 

Chief of Police 
 

Herreshoff/Calouro – Voted 
unanimously to grant this license 
based upon the recommendations 
received and subject to conformance 
to all laws and ordinances and 
payment of all fees, taxes, and 
levies. 

 
3. 1776 Liquors, Ltd., d/b/a 1776 Liquors, 597 

Metacom Avenue - Application of Joan Brito 
for Transfer of Class A Intoxicating Beverage 
License to Elizabeth Brito (new stockholder), 
call for public hearing March 27, 2013 

 
Herreshoff/Calouro – Voted 
unanimously to convene a public 
hearing to consider this matter for 
Wednesday evening, March 27, 2013 
in the Town Hall, Council Chambers 
beginning at 7:00 o'clock PM. 

 
4. Prince Investments Group, LLC, 200 Gooding 

Avenue - Application of William J. Delaney, 
Receiver for Transfer of Class B-V 
Intoxicating Beverage License to B. Peter 
Sebring, d/b/a Bristol Oyster Bar (new 
name/owner), call for public hearing March 
27, 2013  

Calouro/Herreshoff– Voted 
unanimously to convene a public 
hearing to consider this matter for 
Wednesday evening, March 27, 2013 
in the Town Hall, Council Chambers 
beginning at 7:00 o'clock PM. 

 
E. LICENSING BOARD – RENEWALS 
 

1. Cesspool License Renewals (2013-2014) 
 

a. Recommendation - Town Administrator and 
Superintendent of Water Pollution 
Control 

 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 5 of 28 

Stuart/Sweeney – Voted unanimously 
to grant renewal of these licenses 
per the recommendations received 
and subject to conformance to all 
laws and ordinances and payment of 
all fees, taxes, and levies. 

 
2. Tattoo License Renewals (2013-2014) 
 

a. Recommendation - Town Administrator and 
Chief of Police 

 
Calouro/Stuart – Voted to grant 
renewal of these licenses per the 
recommendations received and 
subject to conformance to all laws 
and ordinances and payment of all 
fees, taxes, and levies.  Voting in 
favor of this motion were Council 
Chairman Parella, Councilman 
Calouro, Councilman Stuart, and 
Councilman Sweeney.  Voting opposed 
was Councilman Herreshoff. 

 
Prior to the vote taken, Councilman Herreshoff stated that 
he objects to tattoo licenses and that tattoos are horrible.    

 
F. PETITIONS – OTHER 
 

1. Alfred W. Alix, 115 Hope Street re Claim for 
Damages 

 
Calouro/Sweeney – Voted unanimously 
to refer this matter to the 
Insurance Committee. 

 
2. Richard Ruggiero, 21 Kingswood Road re 

Petition for Installation of Flashing Lights 
with Signage “School Zone - 20 mph” - 
adjacent to front entrance of Guiteras 
Elementary School (Washington Street) and 
also at intersection of High Street and Bay 
View Avenue 

 
Calouro/Herreshoff – Voted 
unanimously to refer this matter to 
the Town Administrator and Chief of 
Police and to anticipate a 
recommendation for the meeting of 
March 27, 2013. 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 6 of 28 

 
Prior to the vote taken, Councilman Stuart reported that he 
spoke to Mr. Ruggiero concerning this matter and that Mr. 
Ruggiero will testify if necessary.  He noted that there is 
only one small sign indicating that the area is a school 
zone and that he (Mr. Ruggiero) believes that the motorists 
in the area are traveling at excessive rates of speed.  It 
was also noted that Guiteras is the only school in Bristol 
without some type of traffic light. 

 
3. Rev. Henry P. Zinno, Jr., Pastor, Our Lady of 

Mount Carmel Church, 141 State Street re 
Request for Use of Town Common, July 8-15, 
2013 

 
a. Recommendation - Town Administrator and 

Chief of Police 
 

Herreshoff/Sweeney – Voted 
unanimously to grant this request 
per the recommendations received 
and subject to conformance to all 
rules, laws, and ordinances and 
payment of all fees, taxes, and 
levies, and with the further 
condition that the petitioner 
should save the turf from harm to 
the extent which is practicable. 

 
Prior to the vote taken, it was noted that the Recreation 
Department provided a recommendation, outlining its previous 
requirements for this event. 
 

4. Thomas P. Weathers, 37 Sowams Drive re Claim 
for Damages 

 
Stuart/Herreshoff – Voted 
unanimously to refer this matter to 
the Insurance Committee. 
 

At this point in the agenda, Council Chairman Parella noted 
the presence of Boy Scouts from Bristol Troop 2 who were 
present in fulfillment of their Citizenship Merit Badge. 

 
G. APPOINTMENTS 
 

1. Public Service Appointments 
 

a. Capital Project Commission 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 7 of 28 

1. Raymond Cordeiro, 73 Franklin 
Street – Resignation 

 
Stuart/Sweeney – Voted unanimously 
to accept this resignation and to 
instruct the Clerk to send a letter 
of thanks for service to Mr. 
Cordeiro. 

 
b. Rogers Free Library Board of Trustees 
 

1. Raymond Cordeiro, 73 Franklin 
Street – Resignation 

 
Stuart/Sweeney – Voted unanimously 
to accept this resignation and to 
instruct the Clerk to send a letter 
of thanks for service to Mr. 
Cordeiro. 

 
After the vote taken, it was noted that Mr. Cordeiro was 
appointed to serve on the Bristol Housing Authority and the 
Town Charter specifies that members of that board cannot 
hold any other office in service to the Town. 

 
c. Bristol County Water Authority Board of 

Directors (term to expire in February 
2016) 

 
1. Joseph DeMelo, 3 Roosevelt Drive - 

Not Seeking Reappointment 
 
2. Georgina Macdonald, 180 Ferry Road, 

P.O. Box 658 - interest/appointment 
 
3. Juan Mariscal, 1303 Hope Street - 

interest/appointment 
 

Herreshoff/Calouro – Voted 
unanimously to instruct the Clerk 
to call a special meeting of the 
Council for Tuesday evening, March 
19, 2013 in the Town Hall, Council 
Chambers, beginning at 6:30 o'clock 
PM, for the purpose of interviewing 
Ms. Macdonald and to also instruct 
the Clerk to send a letter of 
thanks for service to Mr. DeMelo. 

 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 8 of 28 

It is hereby noted for the record that Republican Town 
Committee Chairman Thomas M. Carroll provided a late 
recommendation for the appointment of Georgina MacDonald to 
the Bristol County Water Authority Board of Directors. 
 
Prior to the vote taken, the Clerk noted that Mr. Mariscal 
appears to be disqualified since he is a registered Democrat 
and that the continuing members are also affiliated with the 
Democrat party.  He also noted that the enabling legislation 
specifies that no more than two members from each member 
town can be affiliated with the same political party.  
 
Also at this point in the meeting, the Chairman noted that 
she has called a special budget meeting for Thursday, March 
14, 2013, beginning at 7:00 o'clock PM to allow Town 
Administrator Teixeira and Town Treasurer Goucher to present 
the budget to the Council in advance of the first scheduled 
budget workshop.  She noted that this meeting is being 
called in consideration of the three new Town Council 
members who may not be as familiar with the budget process 
as the continuing members. 

  
H. OLD BUSINESS 
 

1. Councilman Sweeney re Request for Status - 
Poppasquash water supply/fire suppression, 
continued from January 23, 2013 

 
a. Paul L. Bishop, Bristol Director, 

Bristol County Water Authority (BCWA) - 
response to February 6, 2013 
correspondence re future rate increases 
and new management positions 

 
Sweeney/Stuart – Voted unanimously 
to receive and place this matter on 
file.  

 
2. Councilman Stuart re clarification/process 

pertaining to residency requirement for 
Harbormaster applicants 

 
It is hereby noted for the record that agenda items H2 and 
H3 were considered concurrently. 
 

Stuart/Sweeney – Voted to instruct 
the Search Committee to verify the 
discussions relating to these 
agenda items and to proceed with 
interviewing the candidates. 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 9 of 28 

 
Prior to the vote taken, Councilman Calouro renewed his 
recusal concerning this topic. 
 
Councilman Stuart suggested that the Council should hear 
first from Mr. Barboza and then consider Councilman Stuart’s 
agenda item concerning the residency requirement. 
 
Mr. Barboza reported that the Search Committee has vetted 
nine applications and scheduled interviews.  He noted that 
one of the interviews will be via Skype since the applicant 
is currently at sea. 
 
Councilman Herreshoff noted that the required sea-time for 
the Captain’s License may be considered retroactively. 
 
Mr. Barboza noted Councilman Stuart’s earlier question 
concerning the previous Council’s requirement that the new 
Harbormaster should be a resident. 
 
He noted that when he enquired of the candidate’s intentions 
were they to be appointed to the position, two candidates 
indicated that they would not be interested in relocating to 
Bristol and one indicated that he would consider it based 
upon the proposed salary and job security and a fourth could 
not be contacted. 
 
Mr. Barboza also noted that the matter seemed to be moot 
since there were nine qualified candidates and that there 
was no need to consider non-residents. 
 
Councilman Stuart stated that he believes that the Town 
should not rush this appointment and that the process should 
be thorough. 
 
Town Solicitor Ursillo noted that the Town can make 
residency a requirement of accepting the position.  He noted 
that the candidate who has agreed to the residency 
requirement should likely be considered along with the other 
current residents. 
 
Mr. Barboza expressed concern that changing the selection 
criteria at this time would provide a set-back to the 
already established interview process. 
 
Mr. Barboza stated that the person in question appeared to 
be concerned about the salary and also that an annual 
appointment was insufficient job security. 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 10 of 28 

Town Solicitor Ursillo suggested that the person should be 
advised of the salary range and asked if this is acceptable. 
 
Mr. Barboza agreed to the Council’s pleasure. 
 
Councilman Herreshoff suggested that Mr. Barboza should 
“sound out” the potential candidate on the salary matter for 
two minutes on the telephone. 
 
Town Solicitor Ursillo noted that the appointment is for one 
year and “that’s the way it is.” 
 
Council Chairman Parella stated that the job of the Search 
Committee is to return to the Council with the top three 
candidates.  She noted that the non-resident may not make 
the cut. 
 
Mr. Barboza assured the Council that all candidates were 
advised that the Council will make the final decision. 
 
Council Chairman Parella stated that she believes that the 
appointment should not be under the purview of the Town 
Council and that it would be better to have the Harbormaster 
appointed as are the other department managers. 
 
Councilman Herreshoff stated that the “bottom line” is that 
the position cannot be guaranteed and that job security 
should be based upon the performance of the individual. 
 
Mr. Barboza informed the Council that interviews are planned 
for executive session and that he will call the non-resident 
applicant and explain that there is no plan to change the 
salary range or the term of appointment. 
 
He noted that the Committee is working hard to implement the 
search based upon the Council’s previous instructions. 
 
Councilman Stuart stated that he was disappointed and that 
he was concerned that there may be “legal ramifications” to 
the residency requirement.  He agreed that the Search 
Committee is working hard. 
 
Mr. Barboza informed the Council that the Search Committee 
is attempting to secure complete resumes from all of the 
applicants since some did not provide these initially. 
 
Councilman Sweeney stated that he personally believes 
residency to be a “non-issue.” He stated that he would like 
to examine the resumes. 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 11 of 28 

Council Chairman Parella explained that it is the 
responsibility of the Search Committee to vet the candidates 
and that it would be counter-productive to second-guess the 
process at this juncture.  She added that if the Council 
wished to participate in the entire process there would be 
no need for a search committee.  She also added that the 
plan is for the Search Committee to return to the Council 
with the names of three candidates as finalists but that it 
would also be acceptable for the Committee to recommend a 
larger number of finalists if it chooses to do so. 
 
Council Chairman Parella also explained that the Town 
Council may have its own rubric for evaluation of the 
candidates; independent from that used by the Search 
Committee.  She concluded that were the Council to evaluate 
all of the applicants, and circumvent the Search Committee 
the process would be “a disaster.” 
 
Councilman Sweeney stated that he was hopeful that the 
process will be thorough. 
 
Mr. Barboza stated that the Search Committee has strived to 
be impartial in its processing of the applications and that 
the Committee is confident in its work thus far. 

 
3. David E. Barboza, Chairman, Harbormaster 

Search Committee re Committee Update 
 

See agenda item H2 above. 
 
4. Council Chairman Parella re long term 

recycling goals (follow-up to February 20, 
2013 workshop) 

 
Stuart/Sweeney – Voted unanimously 
to receive and place this matter on 
file. 

 
Prior to the vote taken, Council Chairman Parella stated 
that the Council held a productive workshop and that the 
Town will collaborate with Save Bristol Harbor for public 
relations and education.  She noted that the Save Bristol 
Harbor-organized group will hold a meeting next week on 
March 12, 2013 at the Rogers Free Library Herreshoff 
Community Room and that anyone who wishes to may attend. 

 
I. OTHER NEW BUSINESS REQUIRING TOWN COUNCIL ACTION 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 12 of 28 

1. Harry L. Staley, Chairman, R.I. Taxpayers 
(formerly Rhode Island Statewide Coalition) 
re Proposed Master Lever Resolution  

 
a. Draft Resolution to Eliminate Straight 

Party Vote - Master Lever 
 

Stuart/Calouro – Voted unanimously 
to continue this matter until the 
meeting of March 27, 2013 and to 
instruct the Clerk to contact Mr. 
Staley and determine a 
representative to attend said 
meeting to present Mr. Staley’s 
position on this matter. 

 
Prior to the vote taken, Councilman Herreshoff stated that 
the elimination of the master lever is a nationwide trend. 
He added that the elimination of the master lever affords 
the voter the responsibility to examine all of the 
candidates. 
 
Councilman Herreshoff stated that he approves of the trend 
and that it makes for healthier elections. 
 
Council Chairman Parella stated that she agrees with 
Councilman Herreshoff and that the matter has been discussed 
for some time.  She recalled that the late Senator June 
Gibbs made a presentation to the Council in the past in 
support of eliminating the master lever. 
 
A discussion ensued regarding this matter with the Clerk 
sharing some of the conventional wisdom concerning the 
problems associated with the master lever; mainly relating 
to under-votes for non-partisan races and problems with at-
large races. 
 
Council Chairman Parella suggested that Mr. Staley might be 
asked to attend the next meeting and make a presentation on 
his organization’s position. 

 
2. Grover J. Fugate, Executive Director, Coastal 

Resources Management Council re Notice of 
Public Hearing, March 26, 2013 - Ocean 
Special Area Management Plan Revisions 
(deadline for comments March 23, 2013) 

 
Calouro/Herreshoff – Voted 
unanimously to receive and place 
this matter on file. 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 13 of 28 

 
3. Phae Howard, Executive Director, The National 

Center for the Prevention of Home Improvement 
Fraud re Home Repair Fraud Prevention 
Resource Center in Bristol 

 
Calouro/Sweeney – Voted unanimously 
to refer this matter to the Town 
Administrator, Fire Chief, and 
Chief of Police.  

 
4. Michael J. Goetz, Chief, Risk Analysis 

Branch, FEMA Region 1 re Preliminary Flood 
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) and Preliminary 
Flood Insurance Study (FIS) Report - review 
and comment 

 
Stuart/Herreshoff – Voted 
unanimously to continue this matter 
until the meeting of March 27, 
2013. 

 
Prior to the vote taken, Town Administrator Teixeira asked 
that this matter might be continued until the next meeting 
to allow him time to confer with Director of Community 
Development Williamson. 
 
Councilman Herreshoff noted that these maps can sometimes be 
inaccurate. 
 
It was suggested that Town Administrator Teixeira and 
Director of Community Development Williamson should also 
confer with the Interlocal Trust concerning this matter.  

 
5. Ann Strong, Member, Barrington Town Council 

re Establishment of Tri-town Working Group 
concerning the Bristol County Water Authority 
(BCWA) 

 
Herreshoff/Calouro – Voted 
unanimously to instruct the Clerk 
to correspond with Councilwoman 
Strong the Council’s preference to 
allow the “new team” at the Bristol 
County Water Authority some time to 
initiate any needed changes; 
indicating in said correspondence 
the Council’s willingness to 
consider other “regionalization” 
initiatives in the future. 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 14 of 28 

 
Prior to the vote taken, Council Chairman Parella stated 
that she would agree to a committee to look at 
collaborations. 
 
Councilman Stuart noted that the legislation issue should be 
addressed.  He recommended that the Council should be 
cautious in making too many recommendations since the 
management and legal counsel are all new and that it may 
take time for the new leadership to institute systemic 
change. 
 
Councilman Stuart also expressed concern that there were too 
many committees and suggested that the various existing 
authorities should be allowed time to do their job. 
 
Councilman Herreshoff agreed with Councilman Stuart and 
suggested that the new management “needs to be allowed more 
rope.” 
 
Councilman Herreshoff suggested that the Clerk might send 
correspondence to Councilwoman Strong suggesting that the 
matter might be held in abeyance.  He added that there would 
be nothing to prevent the Council’s colleagues from a 
continued study on the matter. 
 
Councilman Calouro agreed with Councilman Herreshoff and 
stated that he was a proponent of regionalization. 
 
Council Chairman Parella suggested that the Clerk’s letter 
to Councilwoman Strong might include a willingness to 
consider other “regionalization” issues in the future. 
 
Councilman Sweeney suggested that the matter should be a 
topic for a future Tri-Council meeting. 

 
6. (Draft) Resolution to Gov. Lincoln D. Chafee 

re Proposed State Budget for Fiscal Year 2014 
- opposition to elimination of Enterprise 
Zone Wage Tax Credit 

 
Herreshoff/Sweeney – Voted 
unanimously to adopt this 
resolution as prepared and 
presented and to transmit same to 
His Excellency Governor Chafee and 
the local General Assembly 
delegation. 

 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 15 of 28 

Prior to the vote taken, Council Chairman Parella stated 
that this issue was important to consider since some 
businesses benefitted greatly from this plan in the past. 
 
Councilman Stuart suggested that the timing of this proposal 
was perfect. 
 

7. Director of Community Development Williamson 
re Request for Executive Session Pursuant to 
RIGL § 42-46-5(a) (5) Acquisition of Real 
Property  

 
It is hereby noted for the record that action concerning 
this agenda item appears at the conclusion of the public 
agenda as found below. 

 
8. (Draft) Resolution re Sakonnet River Bridge 

Tolls 
 

Stuart/Sweeney – Voted unanimously 
to adopt this resolution as 
prepared and presented and to 
transmit same to the local General 
Assembly delegation. 

 
Prior to the vote taken, Council Chairman Parella expressed 
concern that the imposition of tolls on the new Sakonnet 
River Bridge may result in an influx of traffic along 
Metacom Avenue.  She suggested that the Council should 
solicit the assistance of the local General Assembly 
delegation.  She noted that the region’s concern about the 
impact of the tolls appears to have “fallen on deaf ears” 
within the General Assembly leadership. 
 
Councilman Calouro stated that he agrees with this action 
whole-heartedly. 

 
9. Jim Dollins, Vice-chairman, Harbor Commission 

re Transient Dock and Mooring Fees 
 

Herreshoff/Calouro – Voted 
unanimously to refer this matter to 
the Town Solicitor so that he may 
draft the appropriate language to 
replace the currently codified fee 
structure for transient docks and 
moorings with a Council fee policy. 

 
Prior to the vote taken, the Clerk explained that he 
suggested this interim step since the Harbor Commission 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 16 of 28 

informed him that it wished to essentially “test” the fee 
structure.  It was noted that codifying new fees is costly 
and requires several meetings for adoption.  He further 
suggested that it would be better to have a policy which can 
be adjusted readily rather than resolving this by ordinance. 
Interim Harbormaster Calouro indicated that he was in 
agreement with this action. 
 
Town Solicitor Ursillo agreed to prepare the necessary 
documentation. 
 
Councilman Herreshoff stated that he believes that boaters 
should receive free accommodations on Town moorings for 
twenty minutes. 
 
Town Solicitor Ursillo suggested that the ultimate policy 
should be flexible. 
 
Council Chairman Parella noted that all of the interested 
parties should review this matter so that all will be in 
agreement prior to the Council’s adoption of same. 

 
10. Council Clerk Cirillo re C & C Fiberglass 

Components - Request to Use Town Property 
 

a. Director of Community Development 
Williamson re Cesar DaPonte, CCF 
Composites/C & C Fiberglass Components - 
Request to Use Drainage Pond at Golf 
Course (map attached) 

 
Herreshoff/Calouro – Voted 
unanimously to refer this matter to 
the Town Administrator and Director 
of Community Development. 

 
Prior to the vote taken, a discussion ensued regarding the 
use of the pond with Council Chairman Parella suggesting 
that the matter should be also reviewed with Mr. Francis who 
operates the golf course. 
 
Councilman Stuart offered his congratulation to C & C for 
their recent awards.  He noted that Governor Lincoln Chafee 
calls Bristol the “marine district” for the State. 
 
Council Chairman Parella noted that the marine trades remain 
strong despite the other low points in the local economy. 
She added that people wish to purchase marine products which 
are manufactured in our area.  She added that the Council 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 17 of 28 

wishes to help local manufacturers and that this proposal 
may be a way to do so. 
 
Councilman Herreshoff noted that Bristol has a good labor 
pool and that there is 50 years of experience in building 
fiberglass boats in the Town. 
 

J. BILLS & EXPENDITURES 
 
K. SPECIAL REPORTS 
 

1. Allan Klepper and Robert Allio, Barrington 
Directors, Bristol County Water Authority 
(BCWA) re January Monthly Report  

 
Calouro/Sweeney – Voted unanimously 
to receive and place this matter on 
file. 

 
Prior to the vote taken, Councilman Herreshoff stated that 
he still believes that the recent rate increase was 
excessive. 

 
2. Stephan Brigidi, Bristol Representative, 

Board of Directors, Newport and Bristol 
County Convention and Visitors’ Bureau (CVB), 
d/b/a Discover Newport re CVB Update  

 
Herreshoff/Sweeney – Voted 
unanimously to receive and place 
this matter on file with thanks to 
the supplier.  
 

Prior to the vote taken, Council Chairman Parella stated 
that she read through the information provided and thanked 
Mr. Brigidi for providing same. 
 
Councilman Herreshoff commented that the report was 
constructive. 
 
The Council offered their congratulations to Kathleen Sequin 
of Bristol upon her appointment to the CVB Board of 
Directors. 
 

3. Allan Klepper, Barrington Director, Bristol 
County Water Authority (BCWA) re March 
Monthly Report  

 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 18 of 28 

Calouro/Sweeney – Voted unanimously 
to receive and place this matter on 
file. 

 
Prior to the vote taken, Council Chairman Parella stated 
that an important point outlined in the report is the news 
regarding the Authority’s newly retained legal counsel. 
 
Councilman Calouro stated that he was disappointed with the 
Board’s decision. 
 
Councilman Stuart stated that there appeared to be confusion 
about the legal counsel and that the Authority’s former 
counsel was a legal firm and not an individual person. 
 
Councilman Herreshoff stated that he finds the fact that the 
Water Authority does not collect 17% of its billings to be 
“ridiculous.”  He suggested that the Authority should 
collect at a much higher rate.  

 
L. TOWN SOLICITOR 
 
M. INDIVIDUAL COUNCIL MEMBERS AGENDA ITEMS 

 
1. Parella 
 
a. Industrial Park – Council Chairman Parella 
noted that there appears to be need for additional 
industrial land in Bristol.  She noted that there 
is some land located in the Industrial Park which 
is designated as “open space” and suggested that 
the Town may wish to try to “switch-off” this open 
space for similar property elsewhere in Town. 
 
Town Administrator Teixeira agreed to investigate 
this issue. 
 
b. St. Patrick’ Day and St. Joseph’s Day – 
Council Chairman Parella noted the approaching 
feast days. 
 
c. Budget Sessions Begin – Council Chairman 
Parella noted that the annual Town Council budget 
review “workshops” begin on March 18, 2013. 
 
d. Mike Davis – Council Chairman Parella thanked 
Mike Davis for his services. 
 
2. Herreshoff  
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 19 of 28 

a. Mike Davis – Councilman Herreshoff also 
thanked Mike Davis for his services. 
 
b. Citizen Participation at Budget Sessions – 
Councilman Herreshoff noted that that there are 
typically few public participants at the Council’s 
annual budget sessions.  He encouraged citizens to 
attend and voice their opinions. 
 
c.  Bristol Point Road – Councilman Herreshoff 
noted that there appeared to be some confusion 
regarding the location of Bristol Point Road and 
observed that the Clerk sent a letter to Patrick 
and Gail Conley explaining the Town’s knowledge of 
the location of the road. 
 
d. Street Cleanliness – Councilman Herreshoff 
noted that some of the Town’s streetscapes appear 
unkempt and littered and explained that the public 
streets in Scandinavia always appear clean. 
 
Councilman Herreshoff also noted that there 
appeared to be deep ruts on the Town Common and 
suggested that an effort should be made to keep 
trucks from driving on soft ground on the Common. 
 
Councilman Herreshoff suggested that the Town 
should embark on a “crusade” against litter and 
that he observed a large amount of litter adjacent 
to the former Kaiser Complex along upper Franklin 
Street.  He also suggested that the Town might 
consider utilizing back-pack vacuum cleaners.  He 
added that blowers are ineffective since the 
debris is simply relocated and not removed. 
  
3.   Calouro 
 
a. Animal Shelter – Councilman Calouro noted his 
attendance at the annual Mardi Gras in support of 
the Animal Shelter project and that the event 
appeared to be successful. 
 
Police Chief Canario provided a written report on 
the status of the Animal Shelter project. 
 
b. Bodacious Bee – Councilman Calouro noted the 
upcoming Bodacious Bee spelling contest event 
which will be held on Saturday, March 9, 2013. 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 20 of 28 

c. Newport Chamber of Commerce – Councilman 
Calouro noted that he now represents the Town on 
the Newport County Chamber of Commerce and 
informed the Council that he plans to attend 
meetings whenever possible and to bring the 
Council information regarding Chamber news. 
 
d. Transient Fee – Councilman Calouro noted that 
there are transient fees currently in discussion 
and suggested that the Council may wish to 
consider a more comprehensive approach to the 
matter in general; considering a “vision” for the 
use of the harbor in addition to consideration of 
plans for dock expansion, etc.  He suggested that 
the Council may wish to have a workshop on all of 
these matters during the month of April or May. 
 
e.  North-South Crosswalks – Councilman Calouro 
noted that the reason the north-south crosswalks 
along Hope Street in the compact area of the Town 
were eliminated was due to the fact that the State 
would have had to place a stop line fifteen feet 
away from Hope Street which would then become 
useless.  He stated that it may be advantageous to 
consider some type of signage in the absence of 
the designated crosswalks. 
 
Council Chairman Parella suggested that the Harbor 
Commission or other current “standing committees” 
might be charged with examining a comprehensive 
fee structure.  It was also suggested that the 
matter might be discussed during a yearly meeting 
with the various boards and commissions. 
 
4.   Stuart 
 
a. OSCAR – Councilman Stuart noted the recent 
discussion concerning litter, etc., and recalled 
that there was an anti-litter campaign entitled 
OSCAR (Ocean State Clean-up and Recycle) during 
Councilman Herreshoff’s administration as Town 
Administrator.  Councilman Stuart agreed that 
cigarette butts found along Wood  Street are a 
nuisance. 
 
b. Frank Pimental – Councilman Stuart offered 
the Condolences of the Council to the family of 
the late Frank Pimental who passed away 
unexpectedly on March 2, 2013. Councilman Stuart 
noted that Mr. Pimental was a Town employee for 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 21 of 28 

thirty years and a loyal member of the Fourth of 
July Committee; responsible for the rescue of the 
Mr. Potato Head figure. 
 
c. School Tour – Councilman Stuart reported that 
he and Councilman Sweeney attended the annual 
school tour which was held on March 5, 2013.  He 
stated that he appreciated the opportunity to do 
so. 
 
5.   Sweeney  
 
a. School Tour – Councilman Sweeney agreed that 
the School Tour was informative and worth his 
time. 
 

N. TOWN ADMINISTRATOR AGENDA ITEM(S) 
 

a. Parking Ban – Town Administrator Teixeira 
noted that there will be a parking ban effective 
at midnight (today) and will be in place until 
further notice. 
 
b. Tree Limb Cleanup – Town Administrator 
Teixeira reported that the Town has stepped up its 
effort toward removal of the many tree branched 
downed by recent snow storms.  He explained that 
he increased the number of crews working on this 
clean-up from one to three. 
 
Council Chairman Parella asked to know if citizens 
should bring out yard-recycling bags with Town 
Administrator Teixeira responding that there is 
currently one collection per week. 
 
It was noted that those having yard waste 
recycling for pick-up should call the Water 
Pollution Control Department for a Compost 
collection appointment. 
 
Town Administrator Teixeira noted that much debris 
was caused by the blizzard and asked residents to 
be patient.  He also noted that everything will be 
removed eventually. 
 
c. Litter – Councilman Teixeira agreed to revisit 
the litter issue. 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 22 of 28 

d. Clean-up – Town Administrator Teixeira 
reported that the Recreation Department and the 
Police Department are assisting with the clean-up. 
 
e. State Street Dock – Town Administrator 
Teixeira noted that the State Street Dock project 
is “moving along” and that most of the planned 
work is completed with the grating left to be 
done. 
 
f.  Hope Street Sidewalks – Town Administrator 
Teixeira reported that Director of Community 
Development Williamson and Principal Planner 
Tanner are consulting with the State regarding the 
Hope Street sidewalk project. He noted that new 
sidewalks will be made of concrete and that 
granite curbs are planned also. 
 
g. RIPTA - Town Administrator Teixeira noted 
that RIPTA is considering the elimination of bus 
routes along Metacom Avenue (Route 136).  He asked 
for Council support in opposition to this measure. 
He also noted that it was suggested that RIPTA 
might establish a “park and ride” parking lot.  
The former Blockbuster lot, and lots at Rite-Aid 
and St. Thomas Church in Warren were suggested as 
possible sites for this lot. 
 
h. St. Patrick’s Day and St. Joseph’s Day – 
Councilman Teixeira noted the approach of the 
feast days. 
 
Council Chairman Parella asked Town Administrator 
Teixeira if he would investigate some reported 
deep trenched on Jenny Lane which are in the 
vicinity of a newly constructed house.  Town 
Administrator Teixeira agreed to do so. 

 
---- 
 
CITIZENS PUBLIC FORUM 
 
---- 
 
Consent Agenda Items: 
 
(CA) AA. SUBMISSION OF MINUTES-Boards and Commissions 
 
Approval of consent agenda=”Motion to receive and place 
these items on file.” 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 23 of 28 

 
1. Harbor Commission - February 4, 2013 
 
2. Economic Development Commission - January 14, 

2013 
 
3. Animal Shelter Capital Project Committee - 

November 29, 2012 
 
4. Bristol Housing Authority - January 15, 2013 
 
5. Harbormaster Search Committee - February 12, 

2013 
 
6. Bristol Warren Regional School Committee - 

January 28, 2013 
 
7. Conservation Commission - October 1, 2012 
 
8. Conservation Commission - November 5, 2012 
 
9. Conservation Commission - December 3, 2012  

 
(CA) BB.  BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS 
 
Approval of consent agenda=”Motion to approve these 
adjustments.” 
  
(CA) CC.  FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
Approval of consent agenda=”Motion to receive and place 
these items on file.” 

 
1. (Town Treasurer Goucher) re Revenue and 

Expenditure Statement, March 1, 2013 
 

(CA) DD. PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS & CITATIONS  
 
Approval of consent agenda=”Motion to adopt these 
Proclamations, Resolutions and Citations as prepared and 
presented.” 

 
1. Citation - J/Boats & CCF Composites, Sailing 

Industry magazine “Boat of the Year” - J/70 
 

(CA) EE. UTILITY PETITIONS 
 
Approval of consent agenda=”Motion to approve these 
petitions.” 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 24 of 28 

 
1. Department of Public Works - Road Cut Permits 

 
(CA) FF. UPCOMING APPOINTMENTS 
 
Approval of consent agenda=”Motion to approve advertising 
these Appointments.” 

 
1. Public Service Appointments for Advertising 

(March) 
 

(CA) GG. CITY & TOWN RESOLUTIONS NOT PREVIOUSLY CONSIDERED  
 

Approval of consent agenda=”Motion to receive and place 
these items on file.” 

 
1. Maureen Cotter, Chairman, South Kingstown 

School Committee - Resolution re Technology 
Bond 

  
(CA) HH. DISTRIBUTIONS/COMMUNICATIONS  

 
Approval of consent agenda=”Motion to receive and place 
these items on file.” 

 
1. David Green, Chairman, East Greenwich School 

Committee - Resolution re Layoff Notification 
Date  

 
2. David Green, Chairman, East Greenwich School 

Committee - Resolution re Binding Arbitration 
 
3. David Green, Chairman, East Greenwich School 

Committee - Resolution re Contract 
Continuation 

 
4. Coastal Resources Management Council - 

February 2013 Calendar (Amended) 
 
5. Warrant - Patricia A. Sardinha, Bristol 

Housing Authority (tenant member) 
 
6. Maureen Cotter, Chairman, South Kingstown 

School Committee - Resolution re Layoff 
Notification Date 

 
7. Maureen Cotter, Chairman, South Kingstown 

School Committee - Resolution re Contract 
Continuation 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 25 of 28 

 
8. Maureen Cotter, Chairman, South Kingstown 

School Committee - Resolution re Binding 
Arbitration 

 
9. Laureen Berglund, Clerk, North Kingstown 

School Committee - Resolution re Binding 
Arbitration 

 
10. Laureen Berglund, Clerk, North Kingstown 

School Committee - Resolution re Contract 
Continuation 

 
11. Laureen Berglund, Clerk, North Kingstown 

School Committee - Resolution re Layoff 
Notification Date 

 
12. Louise R. Phaneuf, Burrillville Town Clerk -

Resolution re request for support in 
opposition to House Bill 5340 (mandatory 
arbitration and contract continuation) 

  
13. Lake Shore Environmental, Inc., re Public 

Notice - Completion of Site Investigation 
Activities, 756 Hope Street (former Exxon gas 
station) 

 
14. Town Clerk Cirillo to Sen. David E. Bates et 

al re Senate Bill 0020 and House Bill 5137 - 
Sakonnet River Bridge Tolls and Authority 
(signed resolution attached) 

 
15. Warrant - Raymond C. Cordeiro, Bristol 

Housing Authority 
 
16. Council Clerk Cirillo to Public Works 

Director Galuska re Handicapped Parking Space 
- 628 Wood Street (added) 

 
17. Sherry D. McGahan, Clerk, North Smithfield 

School Committee - Resolution re Layoff 
Notification Date 

 
18. Sherry D. McGahan, Clerk, North Smithfield 

School Committee - Resolution re Binding 
Arbitration 

 
19. Sherry D. McGahan, Clerk, North Smithfield 

School Committee - Resolution re Contract 
Continuation 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 26 of 28 

 
20. Class F Alcoholic Beverage License - Holy 

Ghost, St. Elizabeth Church, 577 Wood Street 
(March 2, 2013) 

 
21. Council Clerk Cirillo to Sen. David E. Bates 

et al re Power Outages 
 
22. Council Clerk Cirillo to Daniel L. Beardsley, 

Jr., Executive Director, Rhode Island League 
of Cities and Towns re Power Outages 

 
23. Warrant - John R. Bernardo III, Assistant 

Town Solicitor 
 
24. Council Clerk Cirillo to Sen. David E. Bates 

et al re Senate Bill 0090 and House Bill 5091 
- Tax-exempt Arts District (signed resolution 
attached) 

 
25. Town Administrator Teixeira to Robert B. 

West, Jr., 6 Old Orchard Farm Road re Award 
of Bid #775 - Waterfront Boardwalk Repair 
(Rockwell Park) 

 
26. Sewer Line Installation Agreement between 

Rholen West, LLC, 99 Poppasquash Road (Andrew 
M. Tyska, Manager) and Town of Bristol 
(signed copy) 

 
27. Coastal Resources Management Council - March 

2013 Calendar 
 

(CA) II. DISTRIBUTIONS/NOTICE OF MEETINGS 
   (Office copy only) 
 
Approval of consent agenda=”Motion to receive and place 
these items on file.” 

  
1. Bristol Warren Regional School District 

Schedule of Meetings - Week of February 10, 
2013  

 
2. Bristol Warren Regional School Committee 

Personnel/Contract Negotiation Subcommittee - 
February 11, 2013 (Cancelled)  

 
3. Bristol Warren Regional School Committee - 

February 11, 2013 (Cancelled) 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 27 of 28 

4. Bristol Warren Regional School Committee 
Budget/Facilities Subcommittee - February 13, 
2013 (Revised) 

 
5. Bristol County Water Authority Board of 

Directors - February 13, 2013 
 
6. Building Code Board of Appeals - February 27, 

2013 
 
7. Recreation Board - February 12, 2013 

(Cancelled) 
 
8. Bristol Warren Regional School District 

Schedule of Meetings - Week of February 17, 
2013  

 
9. Bristol Warren Regional School Committee 

Personnel/Contract Negotiation Subcommittee - 
February 20, 2013  

 
10. Bristol Warren Regional School Committee - 

February 20, 2013  
 
11. Bristol Warren Regional School Committee 

Budget/Facilities Subcommittee - February 21, 
2013  

 
12. Bristol Housing Authority - February 20, 2013 
 
13. Harbormaster Search Committee - February 21, 

2013 
 
14. Bristol County Water Authority Special Board 

Meeting - February 21, 2013 (Cancelled) 
 
15. Bristol County Water Authority Special Board 

Meeting - February 25, 2013 
 
16. Bristol County Water Authority Finance 

Committee - February 25, 2013 
 
17. Animal Shelter Capital Project Committee - 

February 21, 2013 
 
18. Harbormaster Search Committee - February 26, 

2013 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING – WEDNESDAY EVENING – MARCH 6, 2013 

Page 28 of 28 

19. Bristol Warren Regional School District 
Schedule of Meetings - Week of February 24, 
2013  

 
20. Bristol Warren Regional School Committee 

Budget/Facilities Subcommittee - February 25, 
2013 

 
21. Bristol Warren Regional School Committee 

Personnel/Contract Negotiation Subcommittee - 
February 25, 2013  

 
22. Bristol Warren Regional School Committee - 

February 25, 2013  
 
23. Bristol County Water Authority Board of 

Directors - February 27, 2013 
 
24. Bristol Warren Regional School Committee - 

February 28, 2013  
 
25. Board of Fire Engineers - March 4, 2013 
 
26. Bristol Warren Regional School District 

Schedule of Meetings - Week of March 3, 2013 
 
27. Bristol Warren Regional School Committee 

Policy/Community Affairs Subcommittee - March 
4, 2013 

 
Calouro/Stuart – Voted unanimously 
to move into Executive Session 
pursuant to RIGL § 42-46-5(a)(5) to 
consider the acquisition of real 
property at 9:02 o'clock PM. 

 
Stuart/Sweeney – Voted unanimously 
to resume open session and seal the 
minutes of the Executive Session at 
9:39 o'clock PM. 

 
There being no further business, upon a motion by Councilman 
Calouro, seconded by Councilman Stuart and voted 
unanimously, the Chairman declared this meeting to be 
adjourned at 9:40 o'clock PM. 
 
 
______________________ 
Louis P. Cirillo, CMC 
Council Clerk 


